

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

The Blockade Runner Motor Hotel
Wrightsville Beach, North Carolina

October 10-13, 1974

Thursday, October 10
5:00 p.m.

The Board convened for business and reviewing of credentials of applicants for license by endorsement. Drs. Joseph W. Hooper, Jr., President, Charles B. Wilkerson, Jr., Secretary-Treasurer, Frank Edmondson, Bryant L. Galusha, Cornelius T. Partrick, E. Wilson Staub, and Vernon W. Taylor, Jr. were present. Also present were Mr. Bryant D. Paris, Jr., Executive Secretary, Mrs. Betty Joe Cooke, and Mrs. Diane Freeman.

Following review of credentials and general discussion, the Board adjourned until 10:00 a.m. Friday morning, October 11.

Friday, October 11
10:00 a.m.

RE: Dr. Gordon M. Wilkins, Charlotte, N. C. -- Findings and Order

A hearing was held before the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of North Carolina upon and concerning charges and accusations preferred by the Board against Gordon M. Wilkins, M.D., at Wrightsville Beach, North Carolina, on October 11, 1974, at which hearing Gordon M. Wilkins, M.D., appeared in person and was represented by counsel.

Following the presentation of evidence, and after hearing argument of counsel for Dr. Wilkins, the Board found and concluded as follows:

That Gordon M. Wilkins, M.D. was convicted of violating the laws of the State of North Carolina in the Superior Court of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, and of the commission of a felony, as set forth in the charges preferred against him by this Board appearing in the record, and grounds exist for the revocation of his license to practice medicine in the State of North Carolina.

It is, therefore, ORDERED, that the license heretofore issued by this Board to Gordon M. Wilkins, M.D. to practice medicine in the State of North Carolina be and the same is hereby revoked.

It is further ORDERED, however, that this Order of revocation be and the same is hereby suspended upon the following conditions, to wit:

That for a period of five (5) years from this date, Gordon M. Wilkins, M.D. shall not violate a State or Federal law and that for such period he remain of good behavior and conduct his practice of medicine in accordance with proper professional and ethical standards, that he keep adequate records of every patient treated or attended by him regardless of the nature of the patient's illness or condition, and that he appear before this Board at its meeting to be held in December, 1975, or at such other times as may be requested by the Board, and that he furnish to the Board any such records or other information concerning his practice of medicine that the Board may require from time to time, and furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board of his compliance with the foregoing conditions of suspension of the Order as may be requested by the Board.

By Order of the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of North Carolina, this 23rd day of October, 1974.

BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS OF THE STATE
OF NORTH CAROLINA

ATTEST:

By: Jos. W. Hooper, Jr. /s/
President

Bryant D. Paris, Jr. /s/
Executive Secretary



Friday, October 11
2:30 p.m.

RE: Dr. Victor W. T. Ng, Robersonville, N. C. -- Board reviewed Dr. Ng's request to allow him to use an assistant in his office in acupuncture procedures who is not a licensed physician in the State of North Carolina.

ACTION: Dr. Wilkerson moved that this request be denied and that Dr. Ng be advised that the practice of acupuncture is the practice of medicine in North Carolina. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Alton L. Bullard, Winston-Salem, N. C. -- Board reviewed letter from Dr. Bullard regarding reinstatement of his license.

ACTION: Dr. Edmondson moved that Dr. Bullard be asked to appear in Raleigh at the December, 1974 Board meeting in regard to this request. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Albert E. Barnhardt, Kannapolis, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Joseph B. Pomerance, Miami, Florida -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Richard G. Parrette, Robbinsville, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Pressley R. Rankin, Jr., Ellerbe, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Samuel A. Pope, Beulaville, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. James B. Wheless, Louisburg, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Leon R. Staton, Hayesville, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Nora H. Hsu, Kinston, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. David J. Delany, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- Executive Secretary presented report on Dr. Delany's file regarding holding his license until he receives the alien registration receipt card, and was instructed to check with Dr. Delany at the end of the month on his citizenship status, and request return of the license certificate if he has not received his alien registration receipt card or received Canadian citizenship.

RE: Dr. Bailey G. Weathers, Stanley, N.C. -- Board reviewed file

RE: Dr. Avery W. McMurry, Shelby, N. C. -- Board reviewed request for corporation name change, and problems surrounding that request.

ACTION: Dr. Galusha moved that this Board inform the Secretary of State that the name in question is enough non-conflicting in the Board's opinion that it does meet the Board's approval and that further approval be left up to the Secretary of State's office. Seconded by Dr. Partrick and duly passed.

RE: Corporation Rules and Regulation amendment -- Executive Secretary presented a proposed amendment to the Rules and Regulations for Professional Corporations regarding notification of any name changes in a professional corporation to the Board of Medical Examiners prior to filing same with the Office of the Secretary of State.

ACTION: Dr. Wilkerson moved that the proposed amendment be approved by the Board. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Isa Grant, Assistant Director, Division of Health Services, Raleigh -- Executive Secretary presented a request from the Division of Health Services of the North Carolina Department of Human Resources regarding allowing physicians applying to take the examination (FLEX) for licensure in North Carolina to work in local health departments prior to taking and passing the examination and receiving licensure in North Carolina.

ACTION: Dr. Galusha moved that this request be denied. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Mobile Intensive Care Technicians -- Board reviewed applications of mobile intensive care technicians presented for approval, and following general discussion instructed that these applications be returned to the Office of Emergency Medical Services for changes in the application and credentials to be submitted, requesting original letters of recommendation, addressed to the Board of Medical Examiners.



RE: Dr. Frank Loda, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- Board reviewed request for applications for two registered nurses performing medical acts who are not graduates of the University of North Carolina Nurse Practitioner program.

ACTION: Dr. Edmondson moved that the Board advise Dr. Loda that the only program for nurse practitioners approved by the Board has been at the University of North Carolina and that, as of this time, the Board has not approved criteria for approving other nursing programs; and also inform him that the Board has written for the curriculum of the two schools' nurse practitioner programs mentioned in his request. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Donald F. M. Bunce, II, D.O. -- Board reviewed request for consideration for licensure based on examination of the National Board of Examiners for Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons of the U.S.A.

ACTION: Dr. Hooper moved that Dr. Bunce be informed that the North Carolina examination is FLEX, and the National Board of Examiners for Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons is not recognized by the North Carolina General Statutes, and therefore the Board of Medical Examiners cannot grant his request for consideration of licensure on that basis. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: August, 1975 Board meeting -- Dr. Galusha moved that the time and place for the meeting be left to the up-coming officers of the Board and the Executive Secretary. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: October, 1975 Board meeting -- Dr. Partrick moved that the time and place for the meeting be left to the up-coming Board officers and Executive Secretary. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Investigator for the Board -- Mr. David L. Miller -- The Executive Secretary reported on his progress in hiring an investigator for the Board, and recommended that the Board hire Mr. David Miller as that investigator.

ACTION: Dr. Partrick moved that the Executive Secretary be instructed, after suitable inquiries, to hire Mr. Miller as an investigator^{for} the Board under the terms and conditions set forth. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Eugene F. Bartlett, Durham, N.C. -- Request to take the FLEX as a continuing education review.

ACTION: Dr. Galusha moved that Dr. Bartlett's request be denied for the following reasons: 1) This examination is not a continuing eddical education type of examination, and there are other forms of this available; 2) Security reasons--information on the examination could become available to others taking the examination for licensure; 3) Logistics--there would not be enough available space for physicians taking the examination for licensure if it were to become a CME exam; 4) Since the examination is a national examination, it would create too many problems and difficulties, and the Federation probably would not be able to handle it.

Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed by vote of 6 for and one opposed.

RE: Dr. James D. Groseclose, Randleman, N.C. -- Board reviewed file.

Dr. Wilkerson moved that the meeting be adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Saturday morning, October 12. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed. Meeting adjourned.

Saturday, October 12
9:00 a.m.

RE: Interviews for license by endorsement of credentials --

RE: Dr. Edwin Lemuel Anderson appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical University of South Carolina in 1972 and is licensed in South Carolina by FLEX in 1972.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Anderson, you are in the Department of Pediatrics at Chapel Hill?

A: Yes, sir, that's right.

Q: Do you have any definite plans for practice here--after you finish your residency?

A: Well, I don't quite know yet--that's three years away, but we certainly do like this area.

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir



Dr. Anderson, continued

Dr. Hooper: Have you personally ever used narcotics, habit forming drugs or alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Do you have any questions, Dr. Anderson?

A: No, sir.

ACTION: Dr. Edwin L. Anderson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Luis Osvaldo Araneda appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the Universidad Nacional del Litoral in Argentina, South America in 1960, and is licensed in Maine by FLEX in 1973, in Vermont and Pennsylvania by examination and in New York by endorsement.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Araneda, do you understand what is missing in your file?

A: I was told that it was incomplete. I was told about someone needing to send a letter who has known me for ten years.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I am planning to work in Anesthesiology at Duke Hospital.

Q: What is your citizenship status?

A: I am already an American citizen. I have my certificate here.

Dr. Araneda presented Certificate of Naturalization, No. 918 6437, issued June 19, 1972.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. Never

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Never

Q: Have you ever used barbiturates or narcotics--? Yourself, personally? A. Never, no A. Never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, never

Q: Do you have any questions, Dr. Araneda?

A: I have to get this letter from a person who has known me for ten years? I don't know if I can get it--I do not know many people here for that long.

Dr. Partrick: Well, you just get a letter from some person who has known you for the longest amount of time, and all of these letters have to be addressed to this Board, and they have to be originals, not copies. If you have any other questions, please ask Mrs. Cooke outside.

Dr. Araneda: But what about this letter from dean -- I do not know if I can get it. You know, the mails, and everything in Argentina--I do not think I can get it out at all.

Dr. Partrick: Doctor, we cannot make a decision on your license until the application is complete. You cannot practice medicine until you have a letter here. We do not expect you to come up with a letter from someone if you haven't known anyone here that long. Just do the best you can, and we'll make a decision based on that, even if it's a letter of six or seven years. When we have a complete application we can make a decision on it. But this will have to be put off until the next meeting if you can't get these things in in about two weeks. That meeting is in December. You try to get these people to write your letters right away and stay in touch with the office to see what has come in.

ACTION: Dr. Luis O. Araneda approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Necip Ari appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Ankara in Turkey in 1954 and has passed the FLEX in Indiana and is awaiting licensure in Ohio.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Ari has very little in the way of credentials now--no application form, but did you bring any with you?

A: I have this letter from my medical school with my photograph.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I have an agreement with Lincolnton Hospital. My wife is also from South Carolina, this area, you know, and we plan to move here.

Q: Have you received your Ohio license?

A: No, sir.

Q: When will you receive it?

A: Any time, I guess.

Q: Are you a citizen of the United States?

A: I am not now, but due for citizenship in about three months.

Dr. Ari presented his alien registration receipt card, Number A 30 903 188, and the photograph compared favorably with the individual present.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board-- been in any trouble? A. No, sir



Dr. Necip Ari, continued

Dr. Partrick: The most important thing for us is to know that you have received a state license--we have to have that to base the endorsement on for your North Carolina license. You do all you can to get this form filled out by your state board as soon as you can and send it to us immediately. We will give this back to you to send to the medical board for them to fill out.

Dr. Ari presented his original diploma from medical school and a translation of same, which the Board accepted as certification of graduation for his credentials.

Dr. Edmondson: What type of practice will you do in Lincolnton?

A: Ob-Gyn.

Q: Where are you now?

A: For the last twelve years I have been a civilian consulting physician for the Air Force. I am living in Ohio now.

ACTION: Dr. A. Necip Ari approved for license by endorsement if and when he receives his Ohio medical license, and application form is completed indicating same, which will be based on the FLEX examination, license to be limited geographically until citizenship is obtained.

RE: Dr. Robert Louis Bauer appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Temple University in 1946 and is licensed in Pennsylvania by examination in 1947.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: His credentials are incomplete, lacking the certified photograph and letter from the dean. What are your plans for practice here, Dr. Bauer?

A: I hope to practice in Dare County near the Outer Banks. I'll be the county health officer, and also plan to do some private practice, too.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No

ACTION: Dr. Robert L. Bauer approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Boyd Blake Berry appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Arkansas in 1972 and is licensed in Arkansas by state board examination in 1972.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Berry, you are on active duty now with the Army?

A: Yes, sir, here at Fort Bragg.

Q: Do you plan to do some moonlighting?

A: Yes, sir, around that area.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board?

A. No

ACTION: Dr. Boyd B. Berry approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Ralph Randal Bollinger appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Tulane University in 1970 and is licensed in Louisiana by examination in 1970.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Bollinger, do you hold any other state licenses?

A: I have held a resident's training license here in North Carolina for about two years and have been registered through the National Board.

Q: You do understand what is lacking in your file?

A: Yes, sir, the secretary told me about it.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir--well,
just traffic things.

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates?

A. No, sir

Q: You are planning to use this license to work at Duke only, is that right?

A: Yes, sir, I might get a full license later on.

ACTION: Dr. Ralph R. Bollinger approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary, same to be limited to Duke University School of Medicine. (creds. comp.)



RE: Dr. Frank Peters Bonikowski appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Hahnemann Medical College in 1970 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Hooper: You are in the military, doctor?

A: Yes, sir.

Q: And you wish a license to some work on the outside?

A: Yes, that's right.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a medical licensing board?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics, habit forming drugs or used alcohol to excess?

A. No

VERDICT: Dr. Frank P. Bonikowski approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Ray Joseph Bouzigard appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Louisiana State University in 1966 and is licensed in Louisiana by examination in 1966 and is licensed in Kansas in 1970 by endorsement.

Dr. Edmondson: You are presently in the military, I believe doctor--do you want to do some extra work?

A: Yes, sir, that's right, I'll be helping out in the area around Fayetteville.

Q: I believe there's been some question as to the spelling of your name--could you give us the correct spelling?

A: Yes, sir, that's B o u z i g a r d.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir, I haven't

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Ray Joseph Bouzigard approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp)

RE: Dr. Jane Elmlade Brazy appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. She is a graduate of Washington University in 1972 and is licensed in Missouri by examination in 1972.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Brazy, you're presently at Duke--which department?

A: I'm in Pediatrics there, and will be specializing in neonatology.

Q: Her credentials are all complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics, or other habit forming drugs or used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with a medical licensing board?

A. No

Q: Your husband is on the staff there too?

A: Yes, that's right--he's right outside.

ACTION: Dr. Jane E. Brazy approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Peter Coffin Brazy appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Washington University in 1972 and is licensed in Missouri by examination in 1972.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Brazy is presently doing research at Duke, and his application is complete.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics, alcohol or other habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No

Q: Do you plan to remain in North Carolina?

A: Well, for a few years at least.

ACTION: Dr. Peter C. Brazy approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. George John Broze, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Washington in 1972 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1972.

Dr. Edmondson: It looks like the credentials that were missing have all come in now, and I believe your file is complete.

A: Yes, sir, I only had to make a statement about my military service, which I've done now, and I believe that completes my file.



Dr. Broze, continued

Dr. Edmondson: You're a first year resident in medicine?

A: Yes, sir, at Chapel Hill.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulties with any medical licensing board?

A. No

Q: What are your plans for practicing here?

A: Well, I hope to eventually get a Fellowship in Hematology and after that I'm not too sure. I am thinking of staying--we do like it here.

ACTION: Dr. George J. Broze, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. James Alfred Bryan appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Tennessee in 1969 and is licensed in Tennessee by examination in 1970 and licensed in Mississippi in 1973 by FLEX and in the District of Columbia by endorsement in 1974.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Bryan, we have taken you out of turn for your personal interview because there are a few things in your application that puzzled us.

A: All right, sir.

Q: Did you practice in Mississippi?

A: To a limited extent, in north Mississippi, as Memphis immediately joins north Mississippi, and as I'm a consultant in Forensic Psychiatry.

Q: Why do you wish a North Carolina license?

A: Two reasons, sir--two professional reasons and one personal reason. The professional reasons are 1) I am in the field of Forensic Psychiatry--in order to testify as an expert witness, one is normally expected to be licensed in the state wherein one is to testify. I have received some inquiries from attorneys in the Raleigh/Durham area requesting my consultation, and therefore I've applied for licensure for this reason. Too, I've started an alcohol and drug program in the State of Tennessee in Memphis, at the present time, and shortly I hope to be extending it to the Chattanooga area. I'd like to expand that rehabilitation program into the State of North Carolina, and I like the state very much. I've lived all over the United States and from a personal standpoint, I find North Carolina the most satisfying of any place I've encountered.

Dr. Hooper: Am I to understand that you can't testify as an expert witness in a state unless you hold a license in that state?

A: In terms of Forensic Psychiatry, one is on very shaky grounds if one is not licensed. I've had this come up when I have testified, in fact.

Q: So, if someone called you to testify in Illinois, you would have to get an Illinois license?

A: In order to testify, specifically in terms of sanity, I have not consulted the North Carolina law, I have not consulted the Illinois law, but it is my understanding that this is a requirement, sir.

Q: Dr. Bryan, have you ever used narcotics personally, in any way? A. No, sir, I have not

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir, I was a teetotaler until quite recently, and now occasionally I use alcohol in great moderation. But I was a teetotaler until three years ago.

Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No, sir I have not

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir I have not

Q: Have you ever been indicted? A. No, sir, although about two weeks after I made my application I was arrested. That case is scheduled to go to court next Tuesday. There is a possibility I may be indicted. I've also filed counter-charges in the case against the agency which filed charges against me.

Q: Would you care to tell us about it?

A: Yes, sir, I'll be happy to. (See file for complete interview)

ACTION: Dr. Galusha moved that the Board take no further action on Dr. Bryan's application for licensure until the hearing is completed, and the Board is furnished with complete court proceedings and documents and the application be brought back for the Board's consideration at that time, and Dr. Bryan possibly will be requested to make another appearance. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. James Gillum Burke appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1973 and is licensed in Georgia by FLEX in 1974.

Dr. Hooper: At the present time Dr. Burke is on the house staff at Bowman Gray, in the Department of Orthopaedics?

A: Well, I will be next year, I'm still a first year resident.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir



Dr. Burke, continued

- Dr. Hooper: At any time have you had difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever personally used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever used narcotics personally in any fashion? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. James G. Burke approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Jo Anne Burkhalter appeared applying for license by endorsement. She is a graduate of the University of Iowa in 1970 and is licensed in Iowa by examination in 1970 and in Washington by endorsement in 1972.

Dr. Hooper: Her application is complete and her husband is in the military. I believe you plan to be here for several years and wishes a license to practice in Fayetteville?

- A: Yes, and possibly a couple of other towns in the area.
- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
- Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No--probably use a bottle of wine a year.
- Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

VERDICT: Dr. Jo Anne Burkhalter approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Charles Andrew Burkhart appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Ohio State University in 1957 and is licensed in Ohio by examination in 1957 and is licensed in Indiana and Missouri by endorsement.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Burkhart is coming to North Carolina to be the medical director of Integon Insurance in Winston-Salem, and his credentials are complete.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, not to excess.
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Charles A. Burkhart approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Kevin Vincent Carey appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of New York University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any state license, Dr. Carey?

A: No, sir, just National Board certification.

Q: Where are you presently?

A: At Chapel Hill.

Q: Do you have a resident's training license?

A: No, sir, I just decided to get my full license after my internship.

Q: The only thing lacking now then is some information about your military service, and your file will be complete.

A: I have never served in the military.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Kevin V. Carey approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Keh-Fang Chen appeared in August, 1974 applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He was approved for same upon satisfactory completion of those credentials, which has now been done.

ACTION: Dr. Keh-Fang Chen approved for license by endorsement, limited geographically until citizenship obtained.

RE: Dr. Theodore Rust Clark appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Harvard University Medical School in 1951 and is licensed in Massachusetts by endorsement with National Boards in 1953 and in Vermont by endorsement.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Clark owns a house in Pinehurst and is thinking about shifting his practice here in the future. His application is complete, with the exception of answering Question 4 on the application form.



Dr. Clark, continued

A: That should be just traffic violations.

Q: Have you at any time ever used narcotics personally? A. No

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. I have used alcohol. At one time it was a problem. I went into the alcohol program in that area, and I have a job lined up running the alcohol program locally in the Pinehurst area.

Dr. Staub: I'm in the Pinehurst area--when do you plan to come?

A: I've been accepted for a job starting in January.

Q: Is this with the mental health center?

A: Yes, through the clinic, with Dr. Schulte and a few others.

Q: So you plan to get here the first of the year.

A: Yes, right. We have a house, have had for a couple of years.

Q: Where is that?

A: Out near Fox Run Country Club.

Dr. Staub: Good, we'll look forward to seeing you. I'm Will Staub and we look forward to having you down permanently.

ACTION: Dr. Theodore R. Clark approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Dennis Alfred Clements, III appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Rochester in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Hooper: At the present time, Dr. Clements is in the Department of Pediatrics at Duke and has a resident's training license and now wishes a full license. His application is complete.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you personally used narcotics in any fashion ever? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Dennis A. Clements, III approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Jose Fajardo Colina, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials at the August, 1974 Board meeting. He was approved for licensure upon satisfactory completion of those credentials, which has now been done.

ACTION: Dr. Jose F. Colina, Jr. approved for license by endorsement, to be limited geographically until citizenship obtained.

RE: Dr. Samuel Leslie Combs, III appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Kentucky in 1968 and is licensed in Kentucky by examination in 1969.

Dr. Edmondson: Are you a resident now--I see you're at Charlotte Memorial?

A: Yes, sir, that's right.

Q: Well, everything is complete except for the AMA inquiry.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Samuel L. Combs, III approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp)

RE: Dr. Herbert Asel Cooper appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Kansas in 1964 and is licensed in Kansas by examination in 1964 and in Minnesota by endorsement in 1965.

Dr. Hooper: Are you on the staff at Chapel Hill?

A: Well, I've been doing research there for a while, and have decided I would like to do some clinical work, so needed to get my North Carolina license.

Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics in any fashion? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever had difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Herbert A. Cooper approved for license by endorsement.



RE: Dr. Malcolm Osbourne Corley appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of South Carolina in 1968 and is licensed in South Carolina by examination and in Georgia by endorsement.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Corley wishes a full North Carolina license to come to Sylva and practice Radiology, and his application is complete.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
 Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No
 Q: When did you plan to come to North Carolina?
 A: I hope to begin work there very shortly.

ACTION: Dr. Malcolm O. Corley approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Robert Whitney Curry, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Duke University in 1971 and is licensed in California by endorsement with National Boards in 1972.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir

Q: Dr. Curry plans to work as an internist with the National Health Service Corps in Plymouth, or rather, has already started his work there. His application is complete with the exception of his grades from the National Board.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. Well, not that I'd call to excess.

Has it ever interfered with your work? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Robert W. Curry, Jr. approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Steven Jae Cynn appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Yonsei University in Korea in 1961 and is licensed in New Jersey by FLEX in 1972 and is licensed in Pennsylvania by examination and in New York by endorsement.

Dr. Hooper: What are your intentions, Dr. Cynn, to practice in North Carolina-- your application is complete.

A: I would like to locate in Taylorsville and practice in North Carolina. There is an opening there in the community, through the county, and I would like to work there, in Obstetrics and Gynecology.

Q: Is that the only county you will work in?

A: So far that is all.

Q: Do you have your alien registration receipt card?

Dr. Cynn presented same, Number A 14 428 014, and the photograph compared favorably with the individual present.

Dr. Hooper: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics in any fashion? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

Dr. Hooper: Let me check something here in your application. What was your name before you changed it?

A: It was Seung. I was very difficult to use it here in this country, so I changed it to Steven. It is really the same name, translated.

ACTION: Dr. Steven J. Cynn approved for license by endorsement, to be limited geographically until citizenship obtained.

RE: Dr. William Templeton Davis appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Virginia in 1951 and is licensed in Virginia by examination in 1951.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Davis is working with the Public Health Service in Cherokee and he desires a full license. Do you plan to continue to work there?

A: Yes. The only reason I need a license is because I've been asked to help out in Murphy at a clinic there, so needed to get my license. Practicing on the reservation, of course, I didn't need it.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs? A. I have used alcohol.



Dr. Davis, continued

Dr. Hooper: Have you ever used it to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. William T. Davis approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. William Augustus Donnelly appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Cornell University in 1940 and is licensed in Connecticut by examination and in Vermont, Virginia and the District of Columbia by endorsement.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Donnelly, at the present time, you are located in Virginia?
 A: No, right now I'm in Connecticut.
 Q: Do you plan to move to North Carolina? What are your plans?
 A: I don't really know. I'm coming back in about a month to look around again.
 Q: What is your specialty?
 A: Allergy.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. William A. Donnelly approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. James Francis Donohue appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of New Jersey College of Medicine and Dentistry in 1969 and is licensed in New Jersey by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Hooper: You're on the staff at Chapel Hill right now?
 A: Yes, sir.
 Q: Dr. Donohue holds a resident's training license and desires a full license. His application is complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir
 Q: Do you plan to remain in North Carolina?
 A: That's not too certain right now--we have thought about it.

ACTION: Dr. James Francis Donohue approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Kelly Thomas Drake appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1973 and is licensed in Georgia by FLEX in 1974.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Drake is a resident at Duke in Radiation Therapy and his application is complete.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. N , sir
 Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics in any fashion? A. Not other than for pain relief.
 Q: Did you use those on prescription or prescribe them for yourself?
 A: I think it's always been on prescription from my father, who is a physician, back home, and don't think I've used any since I've been a physician.
 Q: What type of pain medicine was that?
 A: Empirin, codeine.
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. Not to excess.
 Socially? A. Yes.
 Q: Have you had difficulty at any time with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir.

ACTION: Dr. Kelly T. Drake approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. John Adams Emerson appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of New York Medical College in 1956 and is licensed in California by endorsement with National Boards in 1960 and licensed in Florida by examination.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Emerson's application is complete and he plans to locate in Asheville--
 Dr. Emerson: Or Hickory.
 Q: Or Hickory, this year. Are you presently in Miami?
 A: Yes.
 Q: What's your specialty?
 A: Ophthalmology.



Dr. Emerson, continued

- Dr. Hooper: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. Never
 Q: Have you personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. Never
 Q: Ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. Not to excess.
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. Never
 Q: What prompted you to move to North Carolina?
 A: Well, my wife and I love North Carolina, and getting a little tired of Miami; we've been thinking about a change for a while.

ACTION: Dr. John A. Emerson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Denis Fabian appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Prague in Czechoslovakia in 1933 and is licensed in California by examination and in New York by examination and is a diplomate of the National Board.

- Dr. Partrick: Where are you presently, Dr. Fabian?
 A: I am practicing Plastic Surgery in Los Angeles.
 Q: Are you planning to move to North Carolina?
 A: I have not decided yet, but I would like to be here. I have a brother in Goldsboro and I like this state.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. Never
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Never in my life.
 Q: Have you ever personally used barbiturates or narcotics? A. Nothing at all.
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. Never

The Board reviewed the photograph of Dr. Fabian and letter from Dr. Bader certifying it as a likeness of Dr. Fabian, whom he has known since 1927 when he was an Instructor at The German University of Prague where Dr. Fabian was a student and received his medical degree.

- Dr. Partrick: Dr. Fabian, our biggest problem in granting licensure in North Carolina is being sure that foreign graduates are who they say they are. Have you attempted to get a certified photograph from your medical school?
 A: I tried, yes, when I applied for license in California, or New York, but, I got no answer to my letter. And, also, we did not have photographs taken then of each of us. Dr. Bader knew me very well in Czechoslovakia and also now in Los Angeles.

ACTION: Dr. Partrick moved that the certified photograph requirement and dean's letter of certification of graduation be waived as a requirement for license by endorsement for Dr. Fabian, and he be approved for license by endorsement if and when the California narcotic inquiry is received. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Jerry Keith Froedge appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Louisville in 1969 and is licensed in Kentucky by examination in 1970.

- Dr. Hooper: Dr. Froedge plans to practice in North Carolina--where are you going to locate, doctor?
 A: Hickory.
 Q: What is your specialty?
 A: Pediatrics.
 Q: His application is complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had difficulty at any time with any medical licensing boards? A. No
 Q: Are you in North Carolina now?
 A: Yes, we moved last week.

ACTION: Dr. Jerry K. Froedge approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Samuel Prioleau Fuller appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1973 and is licensed in Georgia by FLEX in 1974.

- Dr. Hooper: You now have your license in Georgia?
 A: Yes, sir.
 Q: Dr. Fuller is a resident in Surgery at N. C. Baptist Hospital and his application is complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used narcotics personally in any fashion? A. No



Dr. Fuller, continued

- Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No, sir
 Q: Are you in General Surgery?
 A: Yes, that's right.

ACTION: Dr. Samuel P. Fuller approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Moye Wicks Freymann appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Johns Hopkins University in 1948 and is licensed in Connecticut by endorsement with National Boards in 1956.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Freymann is joining the University of North Carolina to work in the Carolina Population Center, is that right?

A: Yes, that is, I've been there for a while already.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Do you personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No
 Q: Have you used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, moderate, socially only.

Q: Have you ever had difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

Dr. Staub: You graduated in 1948 from Johns Hopkins, and your first license was in Connecticut--I was wondering why you waited eight years to get a license?

A: Well, I had a funny career. I had 2½ years of internal medicine at Yale and intended to go back to Connecticut, but got sidetracked and went into the Public Health Service and then spent 3½ years in Iran. I got sidetracked again with the Public Health Service and went abroad again, and spent some time in India. My career has been mainly in international health work, I guess, and I still maintain a great deal of interest in it. But I have wanted to get back to my first love, internal medicine, and like it here in North Carolina.

ACTION: Dr. Moye W. Freymann approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Samuel I. Garcia-Peraza appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Puerto Rico in 1971 and is licensed in Puerto Rico by examination in 1971.

Dr. Edmondson: What are your plans for practice here, doctor?

A: Well, through a friend in the Army I met an Ob-Gyn man in Raleigh, Dr. Holt, and I am planning, when I finish my residency, to establish my practice there.

Q: His credentials are complete except for the Puerto Rico Board inquiry.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No--well, speeding
 Any felonies? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, I don't drink

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
 Never faced any disciplinary action from a board? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Samuel I. Garcia-Peraza approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Harris Michael Goodman appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Jefferson Medical College in 1969 and is licensed in California by endorsement with National Boards in 1970.

Dr. Hooper: At the present time, you're in the military at Fayetteville?

A: That's correct.

Q: And you wish a license to work on the outside?

A: Yes.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any fashion? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Harris M. Goodman approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. John Edward Guicheteau appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Creighton University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Edmondson: I believe you're a resident at Baptist Hospital?

A: Yes, that's right.

Q: His credentials have just been completed.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, I haven't



Dr. Guicheteau, continued

- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, never

ACTION: Dr. John E. Guicheteau approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Bohdan Emanuel Gulyn appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical Faculty of the University of Vienna in Austria in 1940 and is licensed in Illinois and Ohio by examination and in Michigan, Wisconsin and Arizona by endorsement.

- Dr. Edmondson: Are you aware of the things that are missing in your file?
 A: Yes, I have sent the photograph to my medical school. I sent it the same time I sent my application, but they only sent back the application.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Well, I do like a good glass of wine.
 Has it ever interfered with your work? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No
 Dr. Gulyn. I also asked for the letter from the dean, but I did not get it back. He did certify the application form though.
 Dr. Partrick: As soon as we receive this certified photograph, we will be able to take action on your file--that is the only thing you lack.

ACTION: Dr. Bohdan E. Gulyn approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Hooshang Hatefi appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Tehran in Iran in 1953 and is licensed in Kansas by FLEX in 1972 and in Michigan by endorsement in 1974.

- Dr. Hooper: Dr. Hatefi, do you have your alien registration receipt card?
 Dr. Hatefi presented same, No. A 31 110 709, and photograph compared favorably with individual present.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or personally used habit forming drugs? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics? A. No, sir
 Dr. Wilkerson: What are your plans for practicing here?
 A: I am interested in working with the mentally retarded, children mostly, and have looked at Murdoch Center at Butner, and am planning to settle there.

ACTION: Dr. Hooshang Hatefi approved for license by endorsement, to be limited geographically until citizenship is obtained.

RE: Dr. James Donald Heckman appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Jefferson Medical College in 1969 and is licensed in Virginia by endorsement with National Boards.

- Dr. Edmondson: You do know what is lacking in your file, Dr. Heckman?
 A: Yes, my application form.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates, personally? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, I haven't

ACTION: Dr. James D. Heckman approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Ronald Allen Hellstern appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Missouri in 1971 and is licensed in Missouri by examination and licensed in Virginia and Maryland by endorsement.

- Dr. Hooper: Dr. Hellstern is moving from Bethesda Naval Medical Center to Camp Lejeune and his application is complete.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics in any fashion? A. Well, have used _____ periodically for some pain.
 Q: _____ with codeine? A. Yes.
 Q: Prescribe that for yourself? A. No, prescription from another doctor.



Dr. Hellstern, continued

- Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Ronald A. Hellstern approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Trafford Hill, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Virginia in 1961 and is licensed in Virginia by examination in 1961.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: Are you aware of what is lacking in your file?

A: Yes, sir, the photograph from my medical school I believe.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally?

A. No, sir, not that I remember.

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any problem with drug addiction or abuse?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any problems with any medical boards?

A. No, sir

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: Well, I'm with a corporation of psychiatrists and live in Virginia Beach, and plan to be a support person for a member of our group who will be practicing in Elizabeth City. Sort of take over when needed during vacations, things like that.

ACTION: Dr. Trafford Hill, Jr. approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Albert Stephens Hollingsworth, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical College of Georgia in 1968 and is licensed in Georgia by examination in 1969.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Hollingsworth is a resident at Charlotte Memorial in Pathology, and wishes to get a full license. His application is complete.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No sir, I have not

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No, sir, I haven't

ACTION: Dr. Albert S. Hollingsworth, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Walter Leggett Holton appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Duke University in 1973 and is licensed in Pennsylvania by endorsement with National Boards in 1974.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Holton's credentials are complete.

Q: Have you ever used or taken narcotics personally?

A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state medical licensing board?

A. No

Dr. Taylor: Where are you from originally, doctor?

A: Edenton. I'll be practicing in that area--Nags Head.

ACTION: Dr. Walter L. Holton approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. James Jacob Hoth appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Louisiana State University in 1968 and is licensed in Louisiana by examination in 1968 and is licensed in South Carolina by endorsement.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Hoth is presently at Womack Army Hospital at Fort Bragg, and I take it you're getting this license to work outside the Army hospital?

A: Yes, sir.

Q: Have you personally used, or use, now narcotics?

A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a medical licensing board?

A. No

ACTION: Dr. James J. Hoth approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Romulo C. Jacinto appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Manila Central University in the Philippines in 1962 and is licensed in New Mexico by FLEX in 1970.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Jacinto, do you know what is lacking in your file?



Dr. Jacinto, continued

A: Well, Mrs. Cooke said it was the photograph--I sent it with the application to be certified, but when I received the envelope back, it was open and the photograph was not in it. It is very hard to get mail in and out of the Philippines now, because of the martial law, you know.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I would like to relocate here, near Asheville. The first offer I have had was near there, and then I have had another offer nearer the beach.

Dr. Partrick: Can you get the certified photograph?

A: It is possible, but it will take a long time. I sent my application to the dean in June, and just get it back in September.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Absolutely not

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Dr. Partrick: The Board will require that another effort be made to have a photograph certified by your medical school in the Philippines. We have the photograph and we will mail it to the school.

ACTION: Dr. Romulo C. Jacinto approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Charles Gary Jackson appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Temple University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Jackson is a resident at Chapel Hill. Do you know what is missing in your file?

A: Yes, sir, my photograph hasn't come back from my medical school yet.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Charles G. Jackson approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Richard Liming Jordan appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Vanderbilt University in 1971 and is licensed in Tennessee by examination in 1971.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state license?

A: No, sir, National Board certification, that's all.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: Well, I just got out of the Air Force, and I'll probably be in Kinston or Lumberton, or that general area.

Q: Do you know what is missing from your file?

A: Yes, sir, and I'll call and follow-up on those letters.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used barbiturates or narcotics personally? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Richard L. Jordan approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Jerome Stovall King appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of George Washington University in 1963 and is licensed in California by examination in 1968 and is also licensed in Virginia, Maryland, Kentucky and the District of Columbia, and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Staub: I understand that you are coming to North Carolina to practice neurosurgery at Chapel Hill. His credentials are complete.

A: Yes, I'll be working in the department at the University.

Q: Have you ever or do you now take narcotics? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or used habit forming drugs personally? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you ever committed a felony? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Jerome S. King approved for license by endorsement.



RE: Dr. Charles Gentry Kirby appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Tennessee in 1960 and is licensed in Tennessee by examination in 1961 and is licensed in Florida by examination in 1969.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Kirby's credentials are complete.

Q: Have you ever taken, or do you now, take narcotics? A. No

Q: Do you take habit forming drugs or alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I'll be practicing in Statesville. I'm an Ophthalmologist.

ACTION: Dr. Charles G. Kirby approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Frederick Arnold Klemm appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Illinois in 1971 and is licensed in Illinois by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses, Dr. Klemm?

A: No, sir.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I'm planning to move to Mooresville and have a family practice there.

Q: His credentials are complete except for the Illinois Board inquiry.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state licensing boards? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Frederick A. Klemm approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Richard Henry Laib appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Cincinnati in 1971 and is licensed in Ohio by FLEX in 1971.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Laib holds a resident's training license at Duke in Radiology, and his credentials are complete except for the long term letter.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Richard H. Laib approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. William Kenneth Laird appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Toronto in Canada in 1968 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1973.

Dr. Galusha: Do you hold any state license here in the United States?

A: No, sir, I've been living in Canada since my graduation, but have been looking at North Carolina since I've completed my training.

Q: What field are you in, Dr. Laird?

A: Plastic Surgery.

Dr. Galusha: His credentials are complete except for the certification of graduation and photograph. What is your citizenship status?

A: I am a Canadian citizen.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. William K. Laird approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. John Elmore Lawrence, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Duke University in 1972 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Lawrence, are you at Duke now?

A: Yes, sir, I'm the Assistant Senior Resident in Internal Medicine.

Dr. Galusha: His file lacks only the long term letter, and we do have a carbon copy of that on file. Evidently, we got the copy instead of the original.

Dr. Lawrence does have three other letters of recommendation on file.



Dr. Lawrence, continued

- Dr. Galusha: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?
Any felonies? A. Just speeding.
A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. Never
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Galusha moved that the carbon copy of the long-term letter be accepted in view of Dr. Lawrence's other letters of recommendation. Seconded by Dr. Partrick and duly passed. Dr. Lawrence approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Abraham Al Levine appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of George Washington University in 1936 and is licensed in Maryland by examination in 1936 and in Pennsylvania and the District of Columbia by endorsement.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Levine plans to practice at New Hanover Memorial Hospital in Wilmington--what type of practice, Dr. Levine?

A: Emergency room physician.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiuurates? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Abraham A. Levine approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Heinz Lichtenstein appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Marburg Medical School of Phillips University in Germany in 1930 and is licensed in New York by examination in 1939.

Dr. Galusha: Doctor, where are you presently?

A: Well, I'm in New York. I've been practicing Psychiatry there for the past 35 years.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I have bought a house in Chapel Hill, and hope to move in the near future, and do some work with the University there in Psychiatry. I'll be retiring soon from my work in New York at the University in Buffalo.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
- Q: Have you, or, I believe you're a naturalized American citizen?
- A: Yes, in 1944.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Lichtenstein has been unable to get a certified photograph from his medical school, in that their records are unavailable from those years, when he was a student; but he has presented his original diploma from that school, with the seal, and a photocopy of his student handbook, with a photograph attached, and I believe these will be acceptable to the Board. There are photocopies of those on file.

ACTION: Dr. Heinz Lichtenstein approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. William Robert Linthicum appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Maryland in 1971 and is licensed in Maryland by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Galusha: Dr. Linthicum's file is incomplete in that we lack the AMA inquiry. You are on active duty in the service now?

A: Yes, in the Navy.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
- Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

ACTION: Dr. William R. Linthicum approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Warren Thomas Loftis, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1951 and is licensed in Florida by examination and in Georgia by examination in 1951.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Loftis' credentials are complete. What is your reason for leaving Florida, Dr. Loftis?



Dr. Loftis, continued

A: We really love this area in North Carolina. We've had a summer home in Montreat for the past 15 years, and have been vacationing up there for the 20 or 25 years. Our children are grown and married, and we just like the area, even better than Florida.

Q: What type of practice will you be doing?

A: General practice.

Q: Is that what you do in Florida?

A: Yes, that's right.

Q: Do you personally take narcotics, or have you ever?

A. No

Q: Do you take alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state licensing board?

A. No, never

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. None other

than what I mentioned on the application about dove hunting in a baited field. Even then, I had just driven up, hadn't even fired my gun.

ACTION: Dr. Warren T. Loftis, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Gerald Lee Logue appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Pittsburgh in 1966 and is licensed in Pennsylvania by endorsement with National Boards in 1971.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Logue held a special limited license in 1967 through 1971 and is now Assistant Professor of Medicine at the VA Hospital in Durham. You've been where before that?

A: I was in the Navy and stationed in Maryland.

Q: Have you ever or do you now personally take narcotics?

A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Ever had any difficulty with a state licensing board?

A. No

ACTION: Dr. Gerald L. Logue approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Russell Clemmons Long appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Cincinnati in 1941 and is licensed in Ohio by examination and in Minnesota by examination and licensed in Texas and Pennsylvania by endorsement.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Long, what are your plans for North Carolina--why are you leaving Ohio?

A: Well, I have relatives down here in Charlotte, and I'm ready to phase out my practice in Ohio.

Q: What type of practice are you in?

A: I'm a General Surgeon. I've made contact with the three hospitals in Charlotte and I'll be a professional surgical assistant with certification. This is something that is very new and quite interesting. In Charlotte they have a regulation in which a general practitioner cannot assist in general surgery, particularly a major operation. In which case, they are having a very dire shortage of qualified surgical assistants, which is what I'll be doing. This is a completely new idea. And, as I phase out my practice in Ohio, I can still be doing things that I like to do and have been doing for the past 30 years. I can work 2 days a week or work 7 days a week because the demand is fantastic.

Q: Will you be a member of the medical staff?

A: Well, I will have to have staff privileges, which comes after licensure, and membership in the Society, so really, I'll just transfer everything down here.

Q: Have you ever or do you now take narcotics?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state licensing board?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Russell C. Long approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Charles Thomas Lucas appeared in August, 1974 applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He was approved for licensure upon satisfactory completion of those credentials, which has now been done.

ACTION: Dr. Charles T. Lucas approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Igor Magier appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Virginia in 1967 and is licensed in Virginia by examination in 1967 and in Alaska by endorsement in 1973.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Magier, I believe you plan to practice in Elizabeth City?



Dr. Magier, continued

- A: Yes, that's right. I'm a Psychiatrist and plan to go into private practice there.
 Dr. Edmondson: There is a note on his file that he is a naturalized American citizen, in 1965. His file is complete except for the Alaska narcotic inquiry.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Igor Magier approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. John Philip Mahaney, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical College of Virginia in 1971 and is licensed in Virginia by endorsement with National Boards in 1973.

- Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Mahaney, are you aware of what is missing in your file?
 A: Yes, sir the secretary told me outside; a photograph from my medical school.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No--well, do you mean traffic...
 Any felonies? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir
 Dr. Wilkerson: What are your plans for North Carolina, Dr. Mahaney?
 A: I'll be working in the emergency room at Craven County Hospital.

ACTION: Dr. John P. Mahaney, Jr. approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Valerie Steele Mandell appeared applying for license by endorsement. She is a graduate of the University of Florida in 1971 and is licensed in Florida by examination and in Georgia and Mississippi by endorsement.

- Dr. Staub: Dr. Mandell's credentials are complete. You've moved to Chapel Hill now; is that where you're working?
 A: I'll be starting a Radiology residency in July at Memorial Hospital. Next July?
 A: Yes, that's right.
 Q: What are you doing right now?
 A: Well, my husband is a physician too, and he's in a residency at Chapel Hill; and until I could get my licensure, I've just been staying at home. I thought I'd look around Durham after I got my license to see what's available.
 Q: Have you ever or do you take narcotics? A. No
 Q: Do you take habit forming drugs or alcohol to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Valerie S. Mandell approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. William Barnes Mathews appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Tulane University in 1962 and is licensed in Louisiana by examination in 1962 and in Florida by examination.

- Dr. Staub: Is that correct, Dr. Mathews, you are licensed in Florida?
 A: Yes, sir, that's right.
 Q: Well, the Florida Board replied that they have no record of Dr. Mathews being licensed in Florida. But you are from Florida aren't you. Are you in Florida right now?
 A: Well, actually, I just came back from overseas. I haven't practiced in Florida for several years.
 Dr. Taylor: Did you renew your license in Florida?
 A: Yes, I have.
 Dr. Staub: Well, I think we'll have to clarify this, since they said they didn't have any record of you according to our credential report. However, Dr. Mathews has presented a membership card in the Florida Medical Association. I think we'll have to make another inquiry. Why don't you write us and give us your number and that will help us in our contact again.
 A: Yes, sir, I'll do that.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, never
 Q: Have you ever or do you now take narcotics? A. No, I haven't
 Q: Do you take alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir



Dr. Mathews, continued

Dr. Taylor: Were you in the service overseas?

A: No, I was doing mission work over there.

Q: Where were you?

A: Turkey.

Q: For how long?

A: Six years.

Q: Had you practiced in Florida before that?

A: Yes, I had.

Dr. Staub: When do you plan to come to North Carolina?

A: Well, actually ... (unintelligible)

Q: Why don't you call our office Monday morning with the license number and we can call the Florida Board and check on the situation, and let you know as soon as we find out.

ACTION: Dr. William B. Mathews approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Joseph Peter McEvoy, III appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Boston University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Staub: Do you have any state licenses at the present time?

A: No, sir.

Q: His credentials are complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Do you now or have you ever taken narcotics?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a state licensing board?

A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

A: What are you going to be doing in Chapel Hill?

A: I'm a surgical resident.

ACTION: Dr. Joseph P. McEvoy, III approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Judith Goldman McGahey appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. She is a graduate of Albert Einstein College of Medicine in 1972 and is licensed in Alabama by endorsement with National Boards in 1973.

Dr. Edmondson: I see you're in Burnsville--do you plan to stay in western North Carolina?

A: Yes, I hope to settle in the area just north of Asheville.

Q: What type of practice are you in?

A: Family practice and Ob-Gyn.

Dr. Edmondson: Her credentials are complete except for the AMA inquiry.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No--traffic violations ...

Any felonies?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. I don't drink

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing board?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Judith G. McGahey approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Hugh J. McGee appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Buffalo in 1932 and is licensed in New York by examination in 1932.

Dr. Staub: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: Where were you born, Dr. McGee--I think you might have missed answering question three on the application form.

A: Buffalo, New York, on November 12, 1907.

Q: Are you retiring? Plan to practice at all? I believe you'll be in Whispering Pines.

A: I don't plan to practice, but of course, you can't ever tell. I would like to keep some contact, but don't think I want to practice too much.

Q: What sort of practice did you have?

A: Urology.

Q: Have you ever or do you now personally take narcotics?

A. No, I don't

Q: Do you take alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. I take alcohol but not to excess.



Dr. McGee, continued

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, I haven't

ACTION: Dr. Hugh J. McGee approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Thomas Muther Mettee appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Rochester in 1968 and is licensed in Hawaii by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Mettee's credentials are complete, and he has been a resident at U.N.C. since 1972. What have you been doing there?

A: Pediatrics one year and Internal Medicine for the past two years.

Q: Where are you going now?

A: Well, I'm still in training, and will finish in about two years. Hope to get a fellowship and then go into internal medicine.

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state licensing boards? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you use narcotics personally? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Thomas M. Mettee approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. John Ralph Miles, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Virginia in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Staub: What are you doing now in Chapel Hill? Taking a residency?

A: Yes, first year resident in Surgery.

Q: His credentials are complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you take narcotics personally? A. No

Q: Do you take alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

ACTION: Dr. John R. Miles, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Roger Stevenson Munro appeared applying for license by endorsement with no file, which was inadvertently omitted from the list for the meeting.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Munro, could you please tell us a little about your medical education?

A: Yes, sir, I'm a graduate of Baylor University College of Medicine. I graduated in June, 1967 and that same year took my Texas state boards and was licensed in Texas after passing them.

Q: What are your plans for practicing here?

A: I am interested in practicing Urology here sometime after the first of next year.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

Q: Have you ever used narcotics personally? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or used habit forming drugs personally to excess? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Roger S. Munro approved for license by endorsement if all credentials are complete and satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. approved)

RE: Dr. Richard Alan Moskowitz appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Harvard Medical School in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Moskowitz is presently in Chapel Hill--what are you doing there now?

A: First year resident in Psychiatry.

Q: What are your plans for the full license rather than a resident's training license?

A: (Answer unintelligible--tape fade-out)

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you take narcotics? A. No

Q: Do you take alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Richard A. Moskowitz approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Gerald John Mullan appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Wayne State University in 1968 and is licensed in Michigan by examination and in California and Pennsylvania by endorsement.



Dr. Mullan, continued

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I will be practicing Ophthalmology in Charlotte.

Q: Do you know what is missing your file?

A: Yes, sir, my completed application form.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever used barbiturates or narcotics personally? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Gerald J. Mullan approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Donald Dewitt Neish appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Temple University in 1958 and is licensed in Pennsylvania by examination in 1959 and licensed in New York, Maryland and the District of Columbia by endorsement.

Dr. Edmondson: What are your plans for North Carolina, doctor?

A: Well, I've accepted a position at Duke and will be teaching in the family practice program.

Q: Do you know what is lacking from your file?

A: Yes, sir, I believe it's a letter from the dean at my medical school?

A: Yes, that's right.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Never, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Donald D. Neish approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Stephen Mangum Norfleet appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical College of Virginia in 1973 and is licensed in Virginia by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Edmondson: When did you complete your National Boards?

A: Just this past year. I've currently applied for a Virginia license--I haven't actually been licensed yet.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I would like to practice in Sunbury. Right now, I'm doing some part-time extra work until my training is complete, which will be about two more years.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, I wouldn't say so.

Q: Have you personally ever used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Stephen M. Norfleet approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Frederick Alan Oldenburg appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Case Western Reserve in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Oldenburg holds a resident's training license and is presently at Chapel Hill, and his credentials are complete. What department are you in?

A: Medicine.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or do you take habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Do you now or have you ever taken narcotics? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Frederick A. Oldenburg approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Boonpas Pichaichanarong appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Siriraj Medical College in Thailand in 1956 and is licensed in Ohio by FLEX in 1972 and licensed in West Virginia by endorsement in 1973.

Dr. Staub: Do you have your alien registration receipt card?



Dr. Pichaichanarong, continued

A: Yes, I have it here.

Dr. Pichaichanarong presented same, Number A 18 975 081, and the photograph on the declaration of Intention to become a United States citizen compared with the individual present.

Q: Where are you now, doctor?

A: I am now at Fayetteville with the VA.

Q: Why do you want a North Carolina medical license?

A: Well, I would like to work in the emergency room at the Cape Fear Valley Hospital.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Do you take alcohol to excess or use habit forming drugs? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you now take narcotics personally? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulties with any medical licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Boonpas Pichaichanarong approved for license by endorsement, limited geographically until citizenship obtained.

RE: Dr. Thomas Patrick Perone appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Ohio State University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir, just my National Boards.

Q: Are you stationed at Fort Bragg--I see you're in Fayetteville?

A: Yes, sir, that's right.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Thomas P. Perone approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. John Murray Potts, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Alabama in 1971 and is licensed in Alabama by endorsement with National Boards in 1972.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: You're at Jacksonville now--are you in the military?

A: Yes, sir, at Camp Lejeune. I'd like to do some extra work around that area when I'm off duty.

Q: Do you know what is lacking in your file?

A: Yes, sir, your secretary explained it to me.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. John M. Potts, Jr. approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Jennings Gillam Pressly appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical University of South Carolina in 1973 and is licensed in South Carolina by FLEX in 1974.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Pressly, are you at Bowman Gray now?

A: Yes, in the Department of Radiology--I'm a resident there.

Dr. Edmondson: His credentials are now complete with this information about the military.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates, personally? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Jennings G. Pressly approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. John Downey Ralston appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Indiana University in 1932 and is licensed in Indiana by examination in 1932 and in Colorado by examination in 1947.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Ralston's credentials are complete. What are your plans for North Carolina?



Dr. Ralston, continued

A: Well, we moved to North Carolina about a year ago, and I've thought about helping out at the Mental Health Clinic in my area, and helping out some of the other physicians.

Q: Where is that?

A: Brevard, North Carolina.

Q: Have you ever or do you now use narcotics?

A. Never

Q: Have you ever used habit forming drugs or used alcohol to excess?

A. About the only thing I do is have a short drink before dinner.

Q: Have you ever had difficulty with any medical examining board?

A. Never have

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. Never have

ACTION: Dr. John D. Ralston approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Warren Edward Ross appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Florida in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

Dr. Edmondson: When did you take the National Board, Dr. Ross?

A: About two months ago.

Q: You hold no state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: Where are you now?

A: Right now I'm at Chapel Hill in a residency.

Q: Dr. Ross' credentials are now complete. Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir not to excess.

Q: Any problems in your work related to alcohol usage?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No

ACTION: Dr. Warren E. Ross approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Zack Russ, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1946 and is licensed in Georgia by examination in 1946 and is licensed in Florida in 1946 and New York in 1952.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Russ is a diplomate of the American Board of Neurology and Psychiatry. Were are you planning...

A: Gastonia, sir. I've already moved.

Q: You plan to practice there?

A: Yes, sir, at the Mental Health Center.

Q: You never renewed your license in Georgia?

A: That's right. I never practiced in Georgia, only took the examination because I was in school at Emory and could reciprocity through Georgia.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir. I was fined \$100 after being charged with careless driving once.

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any disciplinary action by any medical boards?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics?

A. Never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any habit forming drugs or used alcohol to excess?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Zack Russ, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Sarshan Singh Saluja appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of G.S.V.M. Medical College in India in 1963 and is licensed in Virginia by FLEX in 1974.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses, Dr. Saluja?

A: No, sir, I do not.

Q: Do you have your alien registration receipt card with you?

A: Yes, I have it here.

Dr. Saluja presented same, Number A 20 458 513, and the photograph compared favorably with the individual present.

Dr. Wilkerson: What are your plans for North Carolina, Dr. Saluja?

A: I am chief resident now at Suffolk Hospital in Virginia. I would like to work some in the Elizabeth City area.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Saluja is complete with the exception of the certified photograph and letter from his medical school.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally?

A. No, sir



Dr. Saluja, continued

- Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir
 Dr. Galusha: What type of practice are you in, Dr. Saluja?
 A: General practice, sir.

ACTION: Dr. Sarshan S. Saluja approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary, same to be limited geographically until citizenship is obtained.

RE: Dr. John Santilli, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Georgetown University in 1968 and is licensed in Maryland by examination in 1969 and in Virginia by endorsement in 1971.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Santilli is planning to go to Charlotte and join Dr. Taylor in Pediatrics and Allergy. His credentials are all complete.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any way? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: When do you plan to go to work?
 A: Hopefully in August. I wanted to get my license now so I'd be ready and wouldn't have to worry about it during the spring when I was moving.

ACTION: Dr. John Santilli, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Alan John Sault appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the University of Rome, Italy, in 1972 and is licensed in New Mexico by FLEX in 1974.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Sault, I see you're in Winston-Salem--are you at Baptist Hospital?

A: Yes, sir, I'm a resident there in E.R. Medicine.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Sault has not sent his application to Italy for certification, but has furnished us with a certification from his medical school with a photograph attached, and a translation of that. I believe this will be acceptable to the Board.

- Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any way? A. No, sir.
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Alan John Sault approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Salvatore P. Scarlata appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the State University of New York in 1943 and is licensed in New York by examination in 1946.

Dr. Edmondson: You hold no other state licenses?

A: No, sir.

Q: What are you plans for North Carolina, doctor?

A: Well, I have contacted Forsyth General and Duke and would like to teach in Anesthesiology, although nothing is definite yet. I've really just started looking.

Q: Are you aware of what is lacking in your file?

A: Yes, sir, I believe it's one more letter.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, never

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. Never

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. Never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. Well, I did fail the Florida written examination last year.

Q: But you've never faced any disciplinary action from a medical board?

A: No

Q: Never been turned down for a license except with the Florida exam?

A: No, sir.

ACTION: Dr. Salvatore P. Scarlata approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. William Michael Schmitt appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Loyola University in 1970 and is licensed in Florida by endorsement with National Boards in 1972.

Dr. Taylor: Dr. Schmitt holds a resident's training license to Duke--is that right?

A: Yes, sir, I'm a resident in Family Medicine there.



Dr. Schmitt, continued

- Dr. Taylor: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics in any way? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. William M. Schmitt approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Gary Leif Septon appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Virginia in 1970 and is licensed in Virginia by examination in 1970.

- Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses, doctor?
 A: No, sir.
 Q: I believe you're in Charlotte now--do you plan to stay there?
 A: Yes, sir, well, I hope to. I'm applying for various residencies for next year.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
 Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Septon's credentials are now complete since he brought his application with him.

ACTION: Dr. Gary L. Septon approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Charles Robert Sias appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Rochester in 1941 and is licensed in Ohio by examination and in South Carolina by endorsement and in Florida by examination.

- Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Sias, what are your plans for North Carolina?
 A: Well, right now I'm full-time in ER work at the hospital in Greenville. About two weeks ago some people in Hendersonville called to see if I would be interested in coming there to work, so I just got started on my application for license here.
 Q: You do know what is missing in your file?
 A: Yes, most everything I think. Hope to have it all complete shortly.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Charles R. Sias approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary.

RE: Dr. Thomas Edward Sikes, Jr. appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the Medical College of Georgia in 1970, and is licensed in Georgia and Florida by examination.

- Dr. Taylor: Dr. Sikes presently has a resident's training license--to Charlotte Memorial?
 A: Yes, that's correct.
 Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or used habit forming drugs personally to excess? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you personally used narcotics in any way? A. No, sir
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Thomas E. Sikes, Jr. approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Lucien Caldwell Simpson appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Washington University in 1973 and is a diplomate of the National Board.

- Dr. Edmondson: What year did you complete National Boards?
 A: Just this year.
 Q: You hold no other state licenses?
 A: No, sir.
 Q: You are at Chapel Hill now--as a resident?
 A: Yes, in Dermatology.
 Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?
 A: Well, I'll complete my training here and then plan to practice in North Carolina or Tennessee.
 Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No.



Dr. Simpson, continued

- Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No
 Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No
 Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No
 Dr. Edmondson: I believe Dr. Simpson's file is complete now.

ACTION: Dr. Lucien C. Simpson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. John Baldwin Smith appeared with incomplete credentials applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the Medical College of Virginia in 1969 and is licensed in Virginia by examination in 1969, licensed in Texas and Minnesota by endorsement.

Dr. Edmondson: What are your plans for practice here in North Carolina, Dr. Smith?

A: I am presently Assistant Professor of Neurology at Bowman Gray, and plan on being here for a while.

Q: Do you realize what is missing in your file?

A: Yes, the secretary talked with me about it.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards at any time? A. No

ACTION: Dr. John B. Smith approved for license by endorsement if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Milton Thomas Smith appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of New York University in 1949 and is licensed in New York by examination in 1951 and in Kentucky by endorsement in 1956.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Smith, what are your plans for practice in North Carolina?

A: I have recently be assigned as Chief of the Resident Program at Fort Bragg. I'm in Family Practice and may open a private practice also in Windsor in the next few months.

Q: You're on active duty now?

A: Yes, sir and will retire soon.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used narcotics or barbiturates personally? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Milton T. Smith approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Dale Edward Solomon appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials at the August, 1974 Board meeting, and was approved for same upon satisfactory completion of those credentials, which has now been done.

ACTION: Dr. Dale E. Solomon approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Paul Herbert Stevens appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Bern, Switzerland, in 1961 and is licensed in New York by examination in 1962 and in Arizona in 1966.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses, Dr. Stevens?

A: No, sir.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Stevens is a Diplomate of the American Board of Internal Medicine and his application lacks only the certified photograph and letter from the dean of his medical school.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Paul H. Stevens approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. John Howard Strimas appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Albany Medical College in 1970 and is licensed in New York by endorsement with National Boards in 1971.



RE: Dr. Herman Aubry Talley, II appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Arkansas in 1971 and is licensed in Arkansas by examination in 1971.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Talley will be stationed at Camp Lejeune until 1976 and it states here that you plan to practice in Waynesville after your military service.

A: Yes, that's the plan right now.

Q: What type of practice are you in?

A: Ob-Gyn.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you personally take narcotics? A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Ever had any difficulty with a state licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Herman A. Talley, II approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Norman Wayne Taylor appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Maryland in 1970 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1971.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses, Dr. Taylor?

A: No, sir.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I'm on active duty now at Camp Lejeune and would like to do some extra work around that area while I'm here.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, I have not

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No, I have not

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No, never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. Never

ACTION: Dr. Norman W. Taylor approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Roger J. Thompson appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Western Ontario, Canada, in 1950 and is licensed in New York by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Edmondson: Do you hold any other state licenses?

A: No, only my Canadian license.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: Well, I'm interested in Brunswick County, and have been looking around at Southport.

Q: What type of practice are you in?

A: Anesthesiology.

Q: Are you an American citizen?

A: Yes, sir.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. Never

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. Never

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No, I haven't

ACTION: Dr. Roger J. Thompson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Jeffrey Allen Todd appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Ohio State University in 1973 and is licensed in Ohio by FLEX in 1973.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Todd is a resident at Moses Cone--what department?

A: Family medicine.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you personally take narcotics? A. No

Q: Do you use alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Ever had any difficulty with a state licensing board? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Jeffrey A. Todd approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Jerome William Tomc appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Marquette University in 1967 and is licensed in Ohio by endorsement with National Boards in 1973.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Tomc, what are your plans for practicing here?

A: I plan to begin a residency in Urology at Duke soon, but before then I'll be working in the emergency room at Cape Fear Valley Hospital.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No



Dr. Tomc, continued

Q: Do you or have you ever personally used narcotics? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Jerome W. Tomc approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Joseph Taylor Turnbull appeared at the August, 1974 Board meeting applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He was approved for licensure upon satisfactory completion of those credentials, which has now been done.

ACTION: Dr. Joseph T. Turnbull approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. James Wesley Turpin appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Emory University in 1955 and is licensed in Georgia by examination in 1955.

Dr. Edmondson: Dr. Turpin, do you hold any other state licenses?

A: Yes, I was licensed in California in 1957, Texas in 1971 and Tennessee in 1970. I'm also licensed in Canada.

Q: What are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I have accepted a position in Yadkinville for General Practice. Seems they need an additional physician there now.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess?

A. No, I've never used it, period.

narcotics

Q: Have you ever personally used/or barbiturates?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. James W. Turpin approved for license by endorsement if and when credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. John Paton Welch appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Harvard University in 1968 and is licensed in Massachusetts by endorsement with National Boards in 1973.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Welch, what are your plans for North Carolina?

A: I'll soon be beginning my military service at Fort Bragg, and thought I would go ahead and get my license to start with.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you personally take narcotics?

A. No

Q: Have you ever had difficulty with any state medical board?

A. No

Q: Do you or have you ever used alcohol to excess or habit forming drugs personally?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. John P. Welch approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Randall Brooks Whitney appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Tulane University in 1959 and is licensed in Florida by examination and in California by endorsement.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Whitney, what are your plans for North Carolina?

A: Well, nothing definite quite yet--I've been looking around, for a G.P. position.

Q: Your license in California is not current--could you tell us why?

A: Well, I just let it lapse since I though I wouldn't be going back there.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever or do you now personally take narcotics?

A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state medical boards?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Randall B. Whitney approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Charles Emery Williams appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of Louisiana State University in 1963 and is licensed in Louisiana by examination in 1963.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Williams, what are your plans for practicing here?

A: Well, I'm interested in practicing in Asheville. I should be out of the service by the end of this month, and pretty much have definite plans to move to Asheville.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime?

A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess?

A. No

Q: Have you ever or do you now personally use narcotics?

A. No



Dr. Williams, continued

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Charles E. Williams approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. James Robert Williams appeared applying for license by endorsement of credentials. He is a graduate of the University of Oklahoma in 1973 and is licensed in Oklahoma by FLEX in 1973.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Williams, I see you're now in Fayetteville--with the military?

A: Yes, sir, stationed at Fort Bragg.

Q: What are your plans for this area?

A: I'd like to do some extra emergency room work around Fayetteville while I'm here.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever, or do you now, personally used narcotics? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. James R. Williams approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Robert Alexander Wilson appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of the Medical University of South Carolina in 1972 and is a diplomate of the National Board in 1974.

Dr. Staub: Dr. Wilson, I see you're in Durham--are you at Duke?

A: Yes, sir, I'm a resident there and working at McPherson Hospital also. I'd like to do some extra work while I'm here.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any state licensing boards? A. No

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Robert A. Wilson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Stanley C. Wilson appeared applying for license by endorsement. He is a graduate of Ohio State University in 1973 and is licensed in Ohio by examination.

Dr. Staub: What are your plans for North Carolina, doctor?

A: Right now, I'm a resident in Family Practice at Moses Cone, and thought it a good idea to have my full North Carolina license now.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever or do you now personally use narcotics? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you ever had any difficulty with any state medical boards? A. No

ACTION: Dr. Stanley C. Wilson approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Dr. Russell Rudolph Zelko appeared applying for license by endorsement with incomplete credentials. He is a graduate of Cornell University in 1967 and is licensed in New York by endorsement with National Boards.

Dr. Edmondson: What are your plans for North Carolina, Dr. Zelko?

A: I'm on active duty now in the Marines and thought I'd like to do some moonlighting.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever or do you now use narcotics personally? A. No, sir

Q: Have you ever used alcohol or habit forming drugs to excess? A. No, sir

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, sir

ACTION: Dr. Russell R. Zelko approved for license by endorsement.

RE: Applications for Registration as a Visiting Professor --

RE: Dr. Lennart Fagraeus appeared applying for registration as a Visiting Professor.

Dr. Edmondson: How long will you be at Duke as a Visiting Professor?

A: Until the end of next June.

Dr. Edmondson: His credentials are all in order now.

Dr. Partrick: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No, never

Q: Have you ever personally used narcotics or barbiturates? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with any medical licensing boards? A. No, nowhere



Dr. Fagraeus, continued

Dr. Partrick: Dr. Fagraeus, this Certificate of Registration is designed to allow a foreign medical graduate to come and visit in our country and state and practice for a while. It is designed for one year only, and will not be extended beyond one year. Do you intend to enter a residency program--the letter from Dr. Harmel mentioned something about that?

A: Well, that's not been decided yet.

ACTION: Dr. Lennart Fagraeus approved for Registration as a Visiting Professor through June 30, 1975.

RE: Dr. Francis Gerald R. Fowkes appeared applying for a Certificate of Registration as a Visiting Professor to the University of North Carolina School of Medicine. He is a graduate of Edinburgh University in 1970 in Scotland.

Dr. Hooper: Dr. Fowkes will be in the Department of Family Medicine there for one year, beginning in November, to November, 1975. His credentials are complete.

Q: Have you ever been convicted of a crime? A. No

Q: Have you ever used narcotics personally in any fashion? A. No

Q: Have you ever used alcohol to excess or habit forming drugs? A. No

Q: Have you had any difficulty with a medical licensing board? A. No

Dr. Hooper: This certificate is good only for one year, and you do understand that it cannot be extended. If you want to remain, you will have to take our examination and get a full license.

ACTION: Dr. Francis G. Fowkes approved for Certificate of Registration as a Visiting Professor from November 1, 1974 through November 30, 1975.

RE: Assistants to Physicians --

RE: Dr. James T. McRae, Winston-Salem, N.C. -- application complete for Thomas S. Guy, III. Dr. Taylor moved that Mr. Guy be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. A. T. Pagter, Tryon, N. C. -- application complete for Charles J. Beach. Dr. Taylor moved that Mr. Beach be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Claude E. Steen, Jr., Asheville, N.C. -- application complete for Robert L. Jackson, III. Dr. Taylor moved that Robert L. Jackson be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Charles L. Spurr, Winston-Salem, N.C. -- application incomplete for Gale L. Harkness. Dr. Staub moved that Mr. Harkness be approved for use as an assistant to a physician if and when his credentials are completed satisfactory to the Executive Secretary. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Hal T. Wilson, Winston-Salem, N.C. -- application incomplete for Clifton W. English. Dr. Staub reviewed job activities and duties and moved that the assistant be advised he cannot write prescriptions when the statement of approval is sent. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and discussion followed. Substitute motion: Dr. Edmondson moved that Dr. Taylor be authorized to visit the clinic at East Bend where the assistant will be working and make a written report to the Board at the next meeting relative to the operation of the clinic and that the application be held until this is completed. Seconded by Dr. Staub and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Harry D. Lloyd, Rutherfordton, N.C. -- application incomplete for Russell E. Mitchell. Dr. Edmondson moved that Mr. Mitchell be approved for use as an assistant to a physician if and when his final letter of recommendation is received. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed. (creds. comp.)

RE: Dr. Charles A. Keller, Asheville, N.C. -- application incomplete for Walter M. DeLuca. Dr. Edmondson moved that Mr. DeLuca be approved for use as an assistant to a physician if and when fee is received. Sec. by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. George Johnson, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- application complete for Ralph H. Pickett, Jr. Dr. Edmondson moved that Mr. Pickett be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. D. Edmond Miller, Durham, N.C. -- application incomplete for William F. Smith. Dr. Wilkerson moved that Mr. Smith be approved for use as an assistant to a physician if and when fee is received. Seconded by Dr. Partrick and duly passed. (creds. comp.)



Assistants to physicians, continued

RE: Dr. Abner C. Withers, Drexel, N.C. -- application complete for William G. Bassen. Dr. Wilkerson moved that Mr. Vassen be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Howard A. Jemison, Winston-Salem, N.C. -- application complete for Neal S. O'Callaghan. Dr. Galusha moved that Mr. O'Callaghan be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. L. R. Doffermyre, Dunn, N.C. -- application complete for Gilbert W. Coates. Dr. Galusha moved that Mr. Coates be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Francis M. Carroll, Chadbourn, N.C. -- application incomplete for Kenneth R. Pickard. Dr. Galusha reviewed job activities and description and moved that Mr. Pickard not be approved for use as an assistant to a physician as there is not substantial supervision provided for the assistant. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Charles W. Byrd, Dunn, N.C. -- application complete for Harry M. Matthews, Jr. Dr. Partrick moved that Mr. Mathews be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. James M. Croft, Morganton, N.C. -- application complete for Donald R. Lange. Dr. Partrick moved that Mr. Lange be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. John G. Craddock, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- application complete for David E. Lowe. Dr. Partrick reviewed the application and job activities and description and moved that the application not be accepted because the standards used for the assistant in the application are those set for different para-medical personnel and do not sufficiently detail the projected duties and coverage, etc., and also the prescribing duties do not appear to be proper; and that the application should be returned to Dr. Craddock with these two notations. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Harold B. Bates, Burlington, N.C. -- application complete for William M. Rice. Dr. Hooper moved that Mr. Rice be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. A. Griswold Bevin, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- application complete for Calvin H. Coppedge. Dr. Hooper moved that Mr. Coppedge be approved for use as an assistant to a physician. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. T. M. Bullock, Chadbourn, N.C. -- request for amendment to activities and functions of the assistant in the hospital. Dr. Hooper reviewed requested additions and amendments and the previous description of activities in the hospital for the assistant. Dr. Galusha moved that the requested amendments be approved with the deletion of writing orders for any type of therapy that includes respiratory therapy and ordering medications, in that the Board feels these two things allow too much latitude for the assistant, even in the hospital setting. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Fred S. Gachet, Hickory, N.C. -- letter from assistant, Mr. Van Benthuisen regarding recent definition of supervision for assistants. Dr. Edmondson moved that the Board endorse the Executive Secretary's answer to Mr. Van Benthuisen. Seconded by Dr. Partrick and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Alanson Hinman, Winston-Salem, N.C. -- Board discussed letter regarding definition of supervision for assistants to physicians. The Executive Secretary was instructed to forward same to Dr. Partrick for his reply to Dr. Hinman.

RE: Conversion -- limited to full license -- Dr. Edmondson moved that if all credentials are complete and in order, the following physicians be approved for conversion of limited to full license. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed:

Robert Edward Lee

RE: Minutes of August, 1974 Board meeting -- Dr. Wilkerson moved that the minutes of the August, 1974 Board meeting be approved as read. Seconded by Dr. Hooper and duly passed.



RE: Biennial Registration -- Reinstatement -- The following physicians' licenses were suspended for failure to register as required by N.C. G.S. 90-15. They have now registered:

Dominic Anthony Antico	Arnold Kramer
Robert Hodges Bilbro	Robert Edward Lee
Huey Giles Bullock	John Barry McCraw
Robert Amasa Chapman	James Durant Melton
Allan B. Coggeshall	Lawrence Leroy Packer, Jr.
Robert Cecil Crawford, Jr.	William Paxton Parker, Jr.
Elbert Bernard Fountain	John Marvin Perdue, Sr.
David Ross Garr	Alexander Joseph Sabo
Harvey James Hamrick	Carol Diana Silver

Dr. Partrick moved that if all fees and penalties have been paid, the above physicians be duly registered. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Registered Nurses Performing medical acts -- Applications

RE: Dr. Charles E. Frazier, Raleigh, N.C. -- application complete for Judith R. Cheyunski. Dr. Partrick reviewed application and job description and activities of the registered nurse and moved that Ms. Cheyunski not be approved to function as a registered nurse performing medical acts in that she is not a graduate of a program for registered nurses performing medical acts that has been approved by the N. C. Board of Medical Examiners. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Charles E. Frazier, Raleigh, N.C. -- application complete for Ms. Elizabeth J. Brothers. Dr. Partrick moved that Ms. Brothers be approved to function as a registered nurse performing medical acts in accordance with the application submitted. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Dr. Charles E. Frazier, Raleigh, N. C. -- application complete for Ruth M.H. DeBrunner. Dr. Edmondson moved that Ms. DeBrunner be approved to function as a registered nurse performing medical acts in accordance with the application submitted. Seconded by Dr. Wilkerson and duly passed.

RE: Julia D. Watkins, Registered Nurse, Chapel Hill, N.C. -- letter regarding approval as a registered nurse performing medical acts.

ACTION: Dr. Partrick moved that this be received as information and copy of approval letter that is sent to the Board of Nursing be sent to the nurse who applied for same, and copy of approval letter may be sent to any other nurse who requests it. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Budget, 1974-75 -- Finance committee reviewed the Proposed Budget for the fiscal year 1974-75. Dr. Partrick moved that the budget proposed be adopted by the Board. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Registered nurses performing medical acts -- Prescribing practices

ACTION: Following general discussion on registered nurses who have been approved to function as performing medical acts, and their activities as such, Dr. Partrick moved that the Board of Medical Examiners write the Board of Nursing and advise that Board that the prescribing practices as outlined in their protocol is illegal as contained in the North Carolina Drug, Food and Cosmetic Act. Seconded by Dr. Staub and duly passed.

RE: Board conferences with physicians -- Dr. Partrick moved that the President of the Board and the Executive Secretary be authorized to request a physician's appearance before the Board for an interview if deemed necessary. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.

RE: Amendments to Medical Practice Act -- Dr. Staub moved that the Board of Medical Examiners request the Medical Society to endorse an amendment to the North Carolina Medical Practice Act (N.C. G.S. Chapter 90) to require all applicants for licensure in North Carolina to have satisfactorily completed one year of post-graduate clinical training. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

ACTION: Dr. Staub moved that the Board of Medical Examiners request the North Carolina Medical Society to endorse an amendment to the N. C. Medical Practice Act (N.C. G.S. Chapter 90) to empower the Board of Medical Examiners to subpoena records and have access to physicians' records and that the attorney for the Board have authority to draw up this amendment as he sees fit. Seconded by Dr. Edmondson and duly passed.



RE: Amendments, continued

ACTION: Dr. Staub moved that the Board of Medical Examiners request the North Carolina Medical Society to endorse an amendment to the North Carolina Medical Practice Act (N.C. G.S. Chapter 90) to include "gross overcharging" and follow in line with the wording of the Maryland Medical Practice Act and that the attorney for the Board have authority to draw up this amendment as he sees fit. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed.

RE: Formal hearings before the Board -- The Board requested the attorney to draw up procedures for same for the President of the Board to following during these hearings.

RE: Election of Board officers --

RE: President -- Dr. Wilkerson nominated Dr. Frank Edmondson to serve as President of the Board beginning November 1, 1974. Dr. Taylor seconded the nomination and moved that the nominations be closed, seconded by Dr. Wilkerson. Motion duly passed and Dr. Edmondson elected to serve as President from November 1, 1974 through October 31, 1975.

RE: Secretary -- Dr. Edmondson moved that Dr. Wilkerson be nominated to continue serving as Secretary-Treasurer of the Board beginning November 1, 1974. Dr. Taylor seconded the nomination and moved that the nominations be closed, seconded by Dr. Partrick. Motion duly passed and Dr. Wilkerson duly elected to continue serving as Secretary-Treasurer of the Board from November 1, 1974 through October 31, 1975.

Dr. Partrick moved that this Board go on record as expressing its thanks and appreciation to Dr. Hooper for serving as President of the Board during the past year. Seconded by Dr. Galusha and duly passed.

RE: Edwin S. Mize, Charlotte, N.C. -- Following hearing before the Board on August 9, 1974 in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, and following presentation of the evidence and after hearing argument of counsel for Dr. Mize, the Board found and concluded that Dr. Edwin S. Mize was convicted of the commission of a felony as set forth in the Charges preferred against him by this Board, and grounds exist for the revocation of his license to practice medicine in North Carolina. Upon motion duly made, seconded and passed, Dr. Mize's license to practice medicine in North Carolina was revoked, and he was advised that the Board of Medical Examiners will consider a request for reinstatement of same at the end of three months from this date.

There being no further business to come before the Board, Dr. Wilkerson moved that the meeting be adjourned. Seconded by Dr. Taylor and duly passed. Meeting adjourned.


Secretary, NORTH CAROLINA BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

